Public Document PackArun District Council
Civic Centre
Maltravers Road
Littlehampton
West Sussex
BN17 5LF
Tel: (01903 737500)
Fax: (01903) 730442
DX: 57406 Littlehampton
Minicom: 01903 732765
e-mail: committees@arun.gov.uk

Committee Manager - Jane Fulton (Ext 37611)
24 November 2020
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
A virtual meeting of the Standards Committee will be held on Thursday 3rd December
2020 at 6.00 pm and you are requested to attend.

Members:

Councillors Edwards (Chairman), Bennett (Vice-Chairman), BlanchardCooper, Mrs Baker, Bower, Coster, English, Kelly and Tilbrook.

Independent
Persons:

Mr J Cooke, Mr B Green, Mrs S Prail and Mr J Thompson, MBE

PLEASE NOTE: This meeting will be a ‘virtual meeting’ held using Zoom but as it is a
Working Party meeting will be held in private and so not open to the public. The meeting
invite including the meeting joining instructions will be sent out 24 hours before the meeting.
This meeting will not be webcast.
Different meeting arrangements are in place for the period running from 4 April 2020 to 7
May 2021 from the provisions of the Coronavirus Act 2020 and the meeting regulations
2020, to allow formal ‘virtual meetings’.
This Council’s revised Rules of Procedures for ‘virtual meetings’ can be found by clicking on
this link: https://www.arun.gov.uk/constitution
For further information
committees@arun.gov.uk

on

the

items

to

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

be

discussed,

please

contact:

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members and Officers are invited to make any declarations of
pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial interests that they may
have in relation to items on this agenda, and are reminded
that they should re-declare their interest before consideration
of the item or as soon as the interest becomes apparent.
Members and Officers should make their declaration by
stating:
a)
b)
c)

3.

the item that they the interest in
whether it is a pecuniary, personal and/or
prejudicial interest
the nature of the interest

MINUTES

(Pages 1 - 4)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting
held on 24 September 2020, which are attached.
4.

ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WHICH THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE MEETING IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY BY REASON
OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES

5.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION - MODEL MEMBER
CODE OF CONDUCT

(Pages 5 - 8)

This report updates the Committee on progress with the Local
Government Association (LGA) Draft Model Code of Conduct.
6.

STANDARDS RECOMMENDATIONS
MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT

PENDING

NEW

(Pages 9 - 16)

The Government has asked the Committee for Standards in
Public Life (CSPL) to review the Code of Conduct and make
recommendations as to various standards issues. Several of
these can be acted upon in order to reinforce standards at the
authority.
7.

REVIEW OF LOCAL ASSESSMENT PROCEDURE
A review has been requested of the Local Assessment
Procedure for complaints against Councillors under the Code
of Conduct. This report seeks the Committee’s views on the
proposed changes and next steps for the review.

(Pages 17 - 32)

8.

SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDANCE FOR COUNCILLORS

(Pages 33 - 52)

This report seeks further views of the Standards Committee
relating to a new Social Media Guidance document for
Councillors. It is open to Standards Committee to recommend
that Cabinet endorse the Guidance in whole, or with
amendments.
9.

REGISTER OF COMPLAINTS

(Pages 53 - 54)

This report updates the Committee on the complaints against
Councillors received since the last report. The Committee is
responsible for maintaining high standards of conduct by
Members of the District and Town & Parish Councils, for
monitoring operation of the Code of Conduct, and for
considering the outcome of investigations in the event of
breaches of the Code.
10.

EXEMPT INFORMATION
The Committee is asked to consider passing the following
resolution:That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the public and the accredited representatives from
newspapers be excluded from the meeting for the following
item of business on the grounds that it may involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 and Part
5 of Schedule 12A of the Act by virtue of the paragraph
specified against the item.

11.

REGISTER OF ASSESSMENTS OF COMPLAINTS
AGAINST COUNCILLORS [EXEMPT - PARAGRAPH 1 INFORMATION RELATING TO ANY INDIVIDUAL]

(Pages 55 - 60)

The Committee is asked to consider the attached further
report and Appendix to Item 9.

Note : Members are reminded that if they have any detailed questions would they please
inform the Chairman and/or relevant Director in advance of the meeting.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
Subject to approval at the next Standards meeting

177
STANDARDS
24 September 2020 at 6.00 pm
Present:

Councillors Edwards (Chairman), Bower, Coster, English, Kelly and
Tilbrook
Independent Members: Mr J. Thompson, Mr B. Green, Mrs S. Prail
and Mr J. Cooke
Councillors Charles and Clayden were also in attendance at the
meeting.

221.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Bennett and
Blanchard-Cooper.
222.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Coster declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 9, Register of
Complaints Against Councillors[Exempt], and stated he would leave the meeting if there
was any discussion on the item.
223.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 20 February 2020 were approved by the
Committee as a correct record and would be signed by the Chairman as soon as
possible following the Council’s resumption of normal working.
224.

ASSESSMENT HEARING PANEL PROCEDURES

It had been brought to the attention of the Chairman that there were anomalies in
the Assessment Hearing Panel Procedures and, as an Hearing was scheduled for 21
October 2020, he felt that this should be addressed as a matter of urgency at this
meeting for the benefit of all parties concerned.
Members views were expressed that it would be unfair to change the process at
this time whilst there was an ongoing case as the relevant parties had already been
advised of the procedure. It was felt that a review should be undertaken and a report
brought back to the meeting scheduled for 3 December 2020 to enable the Committee
to fully consider the matter.
Hoey Ainscough Associates Ltd had been commissioned to act on the Council’s
behalf with regard to Standards issues and the Chairman welcomed Mr Hoey to the
meeting and thanked him for his attendance. He asked Mr Hoey’s advice with regard to
the risk to the Council if the process was not changed for the upcoming hearing. Mr
Hoey advised that the key issue was that the Assessment Hearing Panel had to be

Page 1

Subject to approval at the next Standards meeting

178
Standards - 24.09.20

treated as any other Committee of the Council and should therefore decide whether
hearings should be heard in closed or public session on a case by case basis. At the
present time, the Panels had been set up to consider all cases in closed session. He
was of the view that, if Members wished to maintain the status quo for the hearing in
October, that would present a low risk but that was for Members to assess.
Mr Hoey confirmed that he would prepare a report for the next meeting of the
Committee on 3 December 2020 to enable Members to reconsider the procedures in
respect of Assessment Hearing Panels.
Members agreed that no change be made to the procedure at this time.
225.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT
CONDUCT

ASSOCIATION

MODEL

MEMBER

CODE

OF

(In considering this item, Mr Hoey declared a personal interest as his company
had been invited by the LGA to write the Code.)
The Chief Executive advised the Committee that the LGA (Local Government
Association) had not yet finalised the New Model Member Code of Conduct. Mr Hoey
confirmed that it was anticipated that the New Code would be approved at the LGA’s
Annual General Meeting due to be held in October and it was therefore suggested that
the matter be deferred for consideration at the meeting on 3 December 2020.
The Committee
RESOLVED
That consideration of the New Model Member Code of Conduct be
deferred to the meeting on 3 December 2020.
226.

NEW SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDANCE FOR COUNCILLORS

The Chief Executive introduced this report and stated that the new Social Media
Guidance would sit as a separate document to the New Model Members Code of
Conduct but would be referenced within that Code. Hoey Ainscough Associates Ltd
had been asked to review the existing guidance as social media had transformed the
way that people communicated and it was important for Councillors to know how to use
the medium effectively as a communication tool.
In considering the matter, some Members expressed their views that the new
guidance was not strong enough and it could just be ignored, it had no “teeth”.
However, Mr Hoey advised that there were legal remedies available if Members
breached the Code of Conduct and there was a particular difficulty in that Members
were also private individuals who could express their views in that capacity. The
guidance was to merely set out how Councillors could avoid getting into difficulties and
to provide a framework for approaching social media.

Page 2

Subject to approval at the next Standards meeting

179
Standards - 24.09.20

The Chief Executive reiterated that there were other routes that could be taken to
deal with problems arising with unacceptable use of social media by Members. Mr
Hoey also advised that his company was working with the LGA as that body wished to
see something more explicit included in the new Code of Conduct that applied to the
use of social media. He confirmed that the law made it very clear that the Council only
had jurisdiction over Councillors when acting in that specific role and not when acting as
a private individual. The Government was being pressed to expand the definition of
when the Code applied to cover the use of social media but that was still to be looked
at.
Comment was made that the new guidance was an improvement on the previous
version but would it not be useful to make reference to GDPR (General Data Protection
Regulations) and SARs (Subject Access Requests) as Councillors should be aware
that if they named individuals there could be repercussions? The Chief Executive
stressed that Members needed to read the guidance very carefully and understand that
any breaches could be referred to the Information Commissioner’s Office and there
could be sanctions.
It was suggested that mandatory training should be provided but the Chief
Executive advised that could not be imposed on Councillors but Group Leaders could
ensure that all their members were aware of and understood the guidance. In addition,
the Chairman, when presenting the Minutes, could raise the issue at Full Council.
The Committee
RECOMMEND TO CABINET – That
(1) The new Social Media Guidance for Councillors be endorsed,
replacing the previous version endorsed by Cabinet on 31 May
2016; and
(2) The Acting Monitoring Officer be authorised to make any
consequential changes arising from the adoption of a new Members
Code of Conduct.

227.

REGISTER OF ASSESSMENTS OF COMPLAINTS AGAINST COUNCILLORS

In presenting this report, the Chief Executive provided a verbal update on case
20/06 to advise that an informal resolution had been agreed.
The Committee then
RESOLVED

Page 3

Subject to approval at the next Standards meeting

180
Standards - 24.09.20

That the Register of Complaints against Councillors and progress of
any outstanding complaints be noted.
228.

EXEMPT INFORMATION
The Committee
RESOLVED
That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public and accredited representatives of newspapers be excluded from
the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it may
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Act by virtue of the paragraph specified against the
item.

229.

REGISTER OF ASSESSMENTS OF COMPLAINTS AGAINST COUNCILLORS
[EXEMPT - PARAGRAPH 1 - INFORMATION RELATING TO INDIVIDUALS]

(Prior to consideration of this item, Councillor Coster redeclared his personal
interest and stated he would leave the meeting if any discussion took place on the
matter pertaining to him.)
The Chief Executive presented this report and also provided verbal updates on a
number of the cases included in the register.
Following a brief discussion, the Committee
RESOLVED – That
(1) The Register of Complaints against Councillors be noted; and
(2) The Acting Monitoring Officer send a refresher to all Members on
the importance of making open minded declarations, where
appropriate, and how to make an open minded declaration.

(The meeting concluded at 7.05 pm)

Page 4

Agenda Item 5

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE
ON 3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT: Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct

REPORT AUTHOR: Nicholas Bennett – Acting Monitoring Officer
DATE: November 2020
EXTN: via 01903 737601

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This report updates the Committee on progress with the Local Government Association
(LGA) Draft Model Code of Conduct.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Committee is asked to:
1) Note progress with the Draft Model Code; and
2) Instruct the Monitoring Officer to bring a further report to the Standards Committee
once the final version of the Model Code is published.
1.

BACKGROUND:

1.1 All Councils are required to have a local Member Code of Conduct.
1.2 The Local Government Association (LGA) produced a new Model Member Code of
Conduct (New Code) which was put out for consultation between 8 June 2020 – 17
August 2020.
1.3 The LGA have considered consultation responses and a revised draft was considered
at an LGA Councillors Forum on 22 October 2020.
1.4 The consultation responses included comments on:

Overwhelming support for the Code. But a number of issues raised.



First person or third person



Respect or Civility?



More on social media including confidentiality.



Declaration of gifts £25 to low £50 too high?

Page 5



Need for accompanying guidance with examples



Equality Act- obligation to comply



Obligation to cooperate with investigation



Compulsory training for members



Sanctions

1.5 A stakeholder roundtable to discuss the responses and ‘next steps’ took place on 30
September 2020, following which a final Code will be prepared for submission to the
LGA Board for approval on 3 December 2020. The LGA will then publish the new Code
and prepare relevant guidance.
1.6 Once the final Code has been published, Standards Committee will receive a report so
that they can consider the adoption of the Code, including consultation with
stakeholders (including Town & Parish councils). If the new Code is adopted,
consequential changes to the Constitution may be required.
2. PROPOSALS
The Standards Committee are asked to:1) Note progress with the Draft Model Code; and
2) Instruct the Monitoring Officer to bring a further report to Standards Committee
once the final version of the Model Code is published
3. OPTIONS:
1) None
4. CONSULTATION:
Legal
Section 27(1) of the Localism Act 2011 (the Act) provides the authority must promote and
maintain high standards of conduct by Members of the authority.
Section 27(2) of the Act provides the authority must adopt a code of conduct that is
expected of Members when acting that capacity.
Section 28 of the Act provides the authority must adopt a Code of Conduct consistent with
the seven principles of public life.
Section 28(5) of the Act provides that an authority may revise its existing code of conduct
or adopt a code of conduct to replace its existing code.
Has consultation been undertaken with:

YES

NO

Relevant Town/Parish Council



Relevant District Ward Councillors



Other groups/persons (please specify)

Page 6

5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)
Financial

YES

NO




Legal
Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment



Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime &
Disorder Act
Sustainability



Asset Management/Property/Land



Technology



Other (please explain)





6. IMPLICATIONS:
Adopting the New Code will provide clear expectations on Members as to their conduct and
will manage public expectations.
7. REASON FOR THE DECISION:
A Member Code of Conduct is required by Section 27 of the Localism Act 2011.
The Code of Conduct requires updating to reflect increased means of communication
between Members and the public, including through social media.
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:
Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct 8 June 2020 (consultation
version)
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-codeconduct-consultation
Committee on Standards in Public Life publication: Local Government Ethical Standards
(January 2019)
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_d
ata/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v
4_WEB.PDF

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT TO AND DECISION OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE
ON 3 DECEMBER 2020
SUBJECT: Standards Recommendations pending new Model Code of Conduct
REPORT AUTHOR: Nicholas Bennett, Acting Monitoring Officer
DATE: December 2020
EXTN: via 37601
PORTFOLIO AREA: Corporate Support
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Government has asked the Committee for Standards in Public Life (CSPL) to review
the Code of Conduct and make recommendations as to various standards issues. Several
of these can be acted upon in order to reinforce standards at the authority.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
1. To note the report from the Committee for Standards in Public Life and this Council’s
responses to the recommendations made within the report.
2. To incorporate the recommendations into the review of the Local Assessment
Procedure.
1.

BACKGROUND:

1.1

On 30 January 2019 the national governance lead, the Committee on Standards in
Public Life, published a long-awaited report on local government ethical standards.
The report followed a consultation by that Committee on this subject.

1.2

The report made a number of findings as to the conduct of district and parish
councillors, risks surrounding the current rules on conflicts of interest, gifts and
hospitality, and strains on local governance.

1.3

The report made a range of recommendations, several of which will require
legislation but also 15 “best practice” recommendations for local authorities. These
changes can be made immediately under the authority’s own decision-making
mechanisms and this report is intended to enable this to occur in order to achieve
these best practices where Members wish to so adopt those best practices.

2. PROPOSAL(S):
2.1

Several of the 15 recommendations are already in place. However, several will
require changes to arrangements, meeting structure, or reporting mechanisms. It is
possible that some, or all, of these will be addressed by the new Model Code of
Conduct.

Page 9

2.2

This Council responded to the request for a progress update on implementation of
the 15 recommendations – attached as Appendix A to this report. As the deadline
for responses fell in advance of this meeting, Committee Members were canvassed
for approval (of the proposed responses) by email.

2.3

Recommendations 1, 2, 3, and 11 await the publication of the new Model Code of
Conduct.

2.4

Recommendations 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, and 14 are already complied with.

2.5

Recommendation 15 – Committee Members to decide whether current reporting
mechanisms are sufficient.

2.6

These responses will be incorporated into the review of the Local Assessment
Procedure, along with the issue of the new Model Code of Conduct.

3. OPTIONS:
3.1 Members can accept all, none, each or any of the options in this report as they think
appropriate based on local standards needs but they represent the express best practice
provisions of the Committee on Standards in Public Life.
4. CONSULTATION:
Has consultation been undertaken with:

YES

NO

Relevant Town/Parish Council



Relevant District Ward Councillors



Other groups/persons (please specify)



Members of Standards Committee
5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)
Financial

YES

NO


Legal



Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment



Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime &
Disorder Act
Sustainability



Asset Management/Property/Land



Technology





Other (please explain)
6. IMPLICATIONS:
6.1 By following best practice the Council can more confidently make and defend standards
decisions. These form a backstop to overall governance and represent the mechanisms
available to the authority to ensure public confidence in how conduct is managed.

Page 10

7. REASON FOR THE DECISION:
To comply with the best practice recommendations, as identified in the CSPL review.
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conductconsultation

20.12.03 Appendix
A Responses to CSPL.docx

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

CSPL local government ethical standards 15 best practice recommendations
Name of local authority: Arun District Council

1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and harassment in codes of
conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and harassment, supplemented with a
list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by such a definition.
Progress:
Awaiting issue of new Model Code.

2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring councillors to comply
with any formal standards investigation, and prohibiting trivial or malicious allegations by
councillors.
Progress:
Current Arun Code needs strengthening on this area but awaiting issue of new Model Code.

3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and regularly seek,
where possible, the views of the public, community organisations and neighbouring
authorities.
Progress:
Awaiting issue of new Model Code.

4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors and the public, in a
prominent position on a council’s website and available in council premises.
Progress:
Currently complied with – published on our website here. Hard copies are available on
demand.

5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at least once per quarter,
and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV.
Progress:
Currently complied with – included in Councillor profiles on our website here.

Page 13

6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest test against which
allegations are filtered.
Progress:
Currently complied with and referenced within our Local Assessment Procedure, para 4.3(f).
The Procedure is available to view here.

7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent Persons.
Progress:
Currently complied with - Arun District Council have 4 x Independent Persons.

8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to undertake a formal
investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to review and comment on
allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss as being without merit,
vexatious, or trivial.
Progress:
Currently complied with and referenced within our Local Assessment Procedure at para
4.3(e).

9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of misconduct following a
formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as soon as possible on its
website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code engaged by the
allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker, and
any sanction applied.
Progress:
Currently complied with and referenced within our Local Assessment Procedure at Para

10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance on its website on
how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the process for handling complaints,
and estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes.
Progress:
Currently complied with and published on our website here.

11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor towards a clerk
should be made by the chair or by the parish council as a whole, rather than the clerk in all
but exceptional circumstances.
Progress:

Page 14

Not currently specifically referenced with the Local Assessment Procedure. Review of the
Procedure is underway and will be progressed further when new Model Code is issued.

12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support and management of
investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish councils within the remit of
the principal authority. They should be provided with adequate training, corporate support
and resources to undertake this work.
Progress:
Currently complied with.

13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address any conflicts of interest
when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps should include asking the
Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the investigation.
Progress:
Referenced within our Local Assessment Procedure at para 5.2.

14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or which they own as part of
their annual governance statement, and give a full picture of their relationship with those
bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities should abide by the Nolan principle of
openness, and publish their board agendas and minutes and annual reports in an accessible
place.
Progress:
Currently complied with - Annual Governance Statement is published on our website here.

15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or group whips to
discuss standards issues.
Progress:
Standards Committee to decide whether current reporting arrangements are sufficient.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT TO AND DECISION OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE
ON 3 DECEMBER 2020
SUBJECT: Review of Local Assessment Procedure
REPORT AUTHOR: Nicholas Bennett, Acting Monitoring Officer
DATE: December 2020
EXTN: via 37601
PORTFOLIO AREA: Corporate Support
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
A review has been requested of the Local Assessment Procedure for complaints against
Councillors under the Code of Conduct. This report seeks the Committee’s views on the
proposed changes and next steps for the review.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Committee is requested to:
a) To consider the proposed amendments to the Local Assessment Procedure, as
reported by Hoey Ainscough Associates Ltd; and
b) To instruct Hoey Ainscough Associates to finalise a revised Local Assessment
Procedure to be presented to the next meeting of Standards Committee for final
approval.
1.

BACKGROUND:

1.1 At their meeting on 24 September 2020, Committee were made aware of some
anomalies within the current Procedure that needed addressing.
1.2 Hoey Ainscough Associates Ltd (HAA) had been appointed to act on the Council’s
behalf with regards to Standards issues and were in attendance at the September
meeting to advise on these matters.
1.3 HAA were asked to attend the next Committee meeting with a report on suggested
amendments.
1.4 HAA have produced their report, attached as Appendix A, for Members to consider
and discuss.
2. PROPOSAL(S):
2.1 To consider the proposed amendments to the Local Assessment Procedure, as
reported by Hoey Ainscough Associates Ltd

Page 17

2.2 To instruct Hoey Ainscough Associates to finalise a revised Local Assessment
Procedure to be presented to the next meeting of Standards Committee for final
approval
3. OPTIONS:
a) To support the suggested proposals for change
b) Not to support the suggested proposals for change
c) To propose alternative amendments
4. CONSULTATION:
Has consultation been undertaken with:

YES

NO

Relevant Town/Parish Council



Relevant District Ward Councillors



Other groups/persons (please specify)



5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)
Financial

YES

NO


Legal



Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment



Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime &
Disorder Act
Sustainability



Asset Management/Property/Land



Technology





Other (please explain)
6. IMPLICATIONS:
The Council needs to ensure that it has a Local Assessment Procedure in place that meets
the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.
7. REASON FOR THE DECISION:
To ensure that the Local Assessment Procedure complies with legislation.
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:

20.12.03 Appendix
A re Review of LAP.docx

Page 18

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

ARUN LOCAL ASSESSMENT PROCEDURES
INTRODUCTION
1. As part of our contract to support Arun DC in handling Code of Conduct cases
we were asked to carry out a review of the Council’s current Local
Assessment Procedures and make any recommendations for change.
2. This review is based partly on our experience of having worked for 3 months
with the Arun procedure, including assessing cases, commissioning an
investigation and supoporting a hearing. It is also, however, based on our
experience of having supported some 400 authorities on standards-related
issues and benchmarking the Arun process against existing good practice.
RECOMMENDATIONS
3. The Committee is asked to note and/or agree the following:
a) That different texts be produced of the process aimed at different
audiences – councillors, the public and officers (paragraph 9)
b) That the subject member usually be informed by the MO upon receipt of a
complaint (para 11)
c) That the MO be given greater flexibility around potential criminal offences
(para 15)
d) That there be a clear presumption against anonymous complaints but that
the MO be allowed some discreation (para 16)
e) That it be clarified that a parish clerk be consulted only on factual matters
(para 17)
f) That the hearings process be compressed into one process rather than
divided between the complainant and subject member (para 21)
g) That it be judged on a meeting-by-meeting basis whether hearings are
open or closed (para 34)
h) That the Committee consider whether political proportionality should apply
to a Hearings Panel (para 35)
i) That the subject member be present throughout the consideration of the
hearing (para 46)

Page 21

APPENDIX A

j) That the Independent Person is not part of the Panel’s private
considerations (para 50)
k) That the committee consider whether they wish to retain an appeals
mechanism (para 55)
l) That officers be delegated to make these changes and other more minor
drafting issues and bring a finalised version to the next meeting, but that
any new cases in the meantime are carried out in line with these
recommendations
OVERALL CONCLUSION
4. The Localism Act does not specify how cases are to be handled – it simply
says councils must make arrangements for handling complaints (with the
principal authority handling parish council complaints) but does not specify
how to discharge that duty. Arun process is broadly in line with processes in
most authorities and represents good practice in many aspects. In a nutshell
the process is broken down into key stages:
a) Receipt of a complaint – when a complaint is received by the Council the
initial assessment of the complaint is done by the Monitoring Officer (MO).
This is in effect a 2-stage process – at the first stage the MO decides if the
complaint meets a legal jurisdiction test – that is, is it about a member,
issues relate to the Code of Conduct etc. The MO has discretion to reject
complaints which do not meet the legal criteria without consultation. This is
standard practice in most authorities.
If a complaint passes the jurisdictional hurdle the MO then has the
discretion to decide what to do with the complaint – that is, to investigate
formally, to seek an informal resolution or to take no further action. In
doing so he or she will consult with an Independent Person (IP) – again
this is standard practice
b) Informal resolution – where the MO decides that an informal resolution is
appropriate it is within the MO’s discretion to decide whether the informal
resolution has worked and if so whether the matter can be closed or if not
if any further action is needed. Again this is standard practice
c) Formal investigation – where a case is sent for formal investigation, the
MO will instruct an Investigating Officer (IO) and notify the relevant parties.
At the end of the investigation, if the IO decides (and the MO agrees) that
no breach has in fact occurred the MO can close the file. In doing so he or
she will again consult with the IP as is standard practice elsewhere. If the
conclusion is that a breach of the Code may have occurred it is sent to a
hearing

Page 22

APPENDIX A

d) Determination hearing – a Panel is convened to hear the case, consider
whether there has been a breach and, if so, what if any sanction should be
imposed. This is again standard practice
e) Review – at the end of the process, both the subject member and/or the
complainant can appeal against a decision and ask for a review. Arun is
one of only a handful of councils that include this step insofar as we are
aware, so this is the one step that is outside standard practice. There is no
statutory requirement to allow an appeal.
5. With the exception of the final review stage, therefore the Arun process in its
headlines is in line with existing good practice and allows for efficient and
proportionate disposal of complaints. We do however have a number of
comments on some of the detail within the process which we will set out
below. Our main concerns relate to the way the Hearings process is run and
also the role of the IP and the appeals process.
6. We will deal with each of our concerns below and welcome the Committee’s
view to enable us, as appropriate, to prepare an updated procedure. Please
note there are some minor drafting issues in terms of consistency of
language, for example, we have raised separately with officers and which we
would pick up in any redraft but would not change the strategic process.
The document
7. Our review was based upon the document on the Council website called
‘Local Assessment Procedure’ which is divided into a number of sections
starting with ‘How to make a complaint’. It is in effect the public face of the
process and is primarily written to explain to the public how they can make a
complaint and what can happen. However, the document becomes confused
in its audience at several places so at times it appears to be written for the
complainant, at times it appears to be written for councillors sitting on a
Hearings Panel and at times it is written for a general audience.
8. In places it goes into detail which in our view the public do not need to know
and the length of the document may make it hard for the public to engage.
9. We would suggest that in any revision several versions should therefore
be written - a ‘boiled down’ version for the public; a similar guide for the
subject member; and a more detailed procedural guide for the Panel
members.

Page 23

APPENDIX A

Receipt of a complaint
10. We have one issue we wanted clarification on around this section. That is
when the subject member is told they have a complaint against them. It is
common in most (but not all) councils that when a complaint is made against
a councillor, the councillor is invited to comment on that complaint before the
MO makes a decision as to whether to take any further action. This can often
be helpful to provide context and give an early indication as to whether a
matter could be resolved amicably. In many cases, the member may anyway
have been made aware of a complaint and may attempt to comment. On the
other hand, there is a risk of a perception that a member’s comments may
have unduly influenced a decision, particularly where no further action is
taken, and in some cases where one councillor has complained against
another it can result in a string of tit-for-tat complaints.
11. On balance we believe, once the MO has applied the legal jurisdiction
test, the subject member should be informed about the complaint and
invited to comment. We think the Arun process may already do that but it is
not clear. For example 4.3c) of the document says that the MO may decide
not to proceed with the complaint if a satisfactory local resolution has already
been agreed. However that could only usually happen if the member already
knew about the complaint. Yet 5.4 (the investigation stage) says the IO at the
start of the formal investigation will send the complaint to the subject member
which could imply they haven’t yet seen it. This may simply be loose drafting
but we would ask the committee to clarify whether they agree the subject
member should normally be informed of a complaint once the first legal
assessment has been made.
12. There may be circumstances where the MO uses their discretion not to inform
the member – for example, where the complainant requires confidentiality or
the MO believes there is a risk of intimidation or destruction of evidence but
these are few and far between and we will build that discretion into the
process.
13. The process also says Complaints which identify criminal conduct or breach
of other regulations by any person, will be referred by the Monitoring Officer
to Sussex Police. We recommend that ‘will’ is changed to ‘may’. As currently
drafted it implies that anything which could potentially be a criminal offence
would have to be referred to the police, for example a bit of shoving in the
council chamber could potentially be assault; a racist term used in a meeting
could be potentially criminal so the MO would have to make an assessment
on each complaint as to whether it could technically engage any criminal
offence, no matter how minor, rather than dealing with it appropriately as a
regulatory matter.

Page 24

APPENDIX A

14. A further effect of this emphasis on referring matters to the police
automatically is that it can build in a long delay into matters which could
ordinarily be resolved more quickly. Thus, for example, while it is right to refer
an alleged non-disclosure of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest to the police as
it is a specific offence under the Localism Act, we recommend that the current
police protocol be revisited by the MO to allow some greater flexibility to deal
with a matter internally where the police appear disinclined to act.
15. The committee are therefore asked to agree that the process allows the
MO greater flexibility around potential criminal offences.
16. The process also says that anonymous complaints will not be accepted. We
believe there should be that presumption but some important whistleblowing
complaints for example have been made anonymously and it would be difficult
for the Council to turn a blind eye to compelling evidence. We therefore
recommend that at 2.3 there is a clear presumption against anonymous
complaints but that the MO is allowed some discretion.
17. For a parish council case 3.6 says that the MO will also seek the clerk’s views
at this stage. We think this needs clarifying to say that the clerk’s view is
being sought on factual matters (for example was the councillor present
at the meeting complained about) rather than matters of opinion. As it
currently stands it is not clear what the clerk is being asked to comment on
nor what weight is to be given to those comments.
Investigation stage
18. Our only significant comment on this is that this stage in your process is called
‘Assessment Stage 1’ which we find confusing. The assessment stage is
normally the initial assessment of whether or not a complaint should proceed,
We therefore recommend that this is renamed ‘Investigation Stage’ or similar.
Determination stage
19. Again we recommend this is renamed ‘determination stage’ or ‘hearing stage’
rather than ‘assessment stage 2’
20. We have a number of issues we want to address in the Hearings Panel
process. Our overall view is that it is ‘skewed’ towards the complainant and
against the councillor. For example, the complainant is told the outcome of the
case before the subject member and there is a lot of emphasis on hearing the
complainant’s side of the story. We understand the the Council is keen to
ensure the complainant feels their complaint has been dealt with fairly by the
Council. In fact, in many cases we have been involved with the complainant
has little role beyond that of a witness at this stage. For example, a complaint
that a councillor may have failed to declare an interest does not necessarily
mean that the complainant is an ‘aggrieved party’ – merely that they have

Page 25

APPENDIX A

observed a failure at a meeting and raised a question. In such cases the
complainant does not need to explain their story; it is for the investigator to
establish whether an interest did in fact need to be declared and for the
subject member to explain why they felt it was not necsessary. Obviously in a
case of bullying, for example, it would be important to hear from the
complainant or ‘victim’.
21. We therefore recommend that the Hearings process is re-written to
move emphasis from hearing the complainant versus the subject
member and is more compressed into one phase during the body of the
hearing.
22. At the October committee meeting we previously suggested there were two
further areas in the procedures which the Panel should consider carefully as
we felt two variations in the process would represent better compliance with
legal duties and/or natural justice.
23. The procedures allow the Panel’s chairman to vary them but the Panel
wanted to consider the issue more formally. These are set out below.
Confidentiality and political proportionality
24. Paragraph 2 of Appendix 1 of the Procedure says ‘Hearings of the Panel will
be held in closed session.’ In our view it is unlawful to have such a blanket
statement.
25. Any decision-making body of a council (including any committee set up in
order to discharge standards functions under the Localism Act) is to be
considered an ‘ordinary committee’ of the authority. That means for the Panel
(as it has decision-making powers in that it can find a breach and impose or
recommend a sanction) the same rules apply to it as apply to all other
committees of the authority which do not have specific statutory rules applying
to them. (An example of a ‘statutory committee’ was a standards committee
under the previous national standards framework as such a committee was
mandatory by law and certain rules relating to its constitution, including
access to information provisions, had been specified by law but those rules
were repealed by the Localism Act).
26. As an ‘ordinary committee’ there are two particular rules which apply. The first
is that the committee must reflect the political balance of the council as a
whole unless the council as a body or the parent committee of a subcommittee has resolved to waive that requirement (the so-called
‘proportionality rules’).

Page 26

APPENDIX A

27. The second is that the committee is subject to local government access to
information provisions. These are procedural rules set out in law which say
that a committee must meet in public but that certain items can be taken in
closed session if the information is covered by one or more category of
‘exempt information’.
28. If information is deemed to be ‘exempt information’ the committee must vote
on whether the matter be dealt with in private and can decide in actual fact
still to hold the meeting in public if they believe it is nevertheless in the public
interest to do so.
29. That decision on whether or not to hold the Hearing in closed session must
therefore be considered on a case-by-case basis and not as a blanket
examption as set out in the procedures.
30. We have therefore said to the Panel that they will have to consider as their
first item of business whether or not to hold the meeting in public.
31. That has a number of implications. As the presumption has to be that the
meeting will be in public it would need advertising in advance and if
appropriate the papers would need to be made available in advance as with
other Council meetings unless the officer recommendation was clearly that
the matter was to be considered exempt information.
32. The general presumption in most places in our experience has been that a
hearing is open to the public. This is on the basis that hearing a case against
an elected member would be considered to be in the public interest,
particularly given the Government’s stated view that the major sanction
against any councillor found guilty of wrongdoing is the court of public opinion
or the ballot box. How can the public be expected to make an informed
decision if they have not been presented with all the evidence?
33. In order to be exempt the matter must fall within one of a small number of
categories within legislation. Given the stated public interest, you would
expect a high threshold to be placed on when a standards issue is dealt with
in private – for example, there is a real risk to somebody involved were certain
information to come into the public domain, or information disclosed could
prejudice other matters.
34. The Committee is therefore asked to agree that there should not be a
blanket presumption towards closed hearings but that each meeting
must consider the facts on its merits at the start of proceedings.
35. We also note that the process says nothing about the required ‘political
proportionality’ of the Panel. The Committee is asked to consider
whether political proportionality should apply or whether they wish to
pass a resolution to waive proportionality of the sub-committee.

Page 27

APPENDIX A

The role of the subject member
36. The Arun procedure is designed to be ‘inquisitorial’ rather than ‘adversarial’ –
that is it is about establishing facts and reaching conclusions. That is quite an
appropriate approach as the framework is relatively ‘light touch’.
37. As there is no power to suspend or disqualify a councillor it does not legally
have to comply with the ‘right to a fair trial’ under human rights legislation –
that only applies where someone’s livelihood is at stake, for example. That
said any hearing must be procedurally fair and comply with natural justice if it
is to avoid potential challenge. However as we have said above we think the
procedure as written seems skewed towards the complainant.
38. The Arun hearings procedure broadly divides into two parts. In the first the
investigator sets out his or her case and then the complainants are also
invited to put ‘their side of the story’. That is done in the absence of the
subject member. The Panel can question the investigator and complainants
(and any relevant witnesses) and satisfy themselves of the facts.
39. The complainants then withdraw and the subject member is invited in to put
‘their side of the story’ and again the Panel can question them.
40. This process, while allowing for fact-finding, does not allow the subject
member (whose reputation is at stake) to hear what complainants or
witnesses may have said about them and where necessary to challenge
assertions.
41. In our experience it is common in most disciplinary processes for the
‘accused’ to hear the case against them and in many standards hearings we
have been involved in, a subject member has had legal representation to
cross-examine witnesses.
42. We therefore ask the committee to consider whether they would allow the
subject member to be present through the hearing to hear the evidence (even
if not able to question the complainants).
43. Arguments in favour of this would be that it is more likely to meet the tests of
natural justice and therefore less resistant to appeal.
44. On the other hand a less adversarial approach is to be commended given the
relative sanctions and there is a danger in some cases (particularly those
which may, for example, involve allegations of bullying) that it would be
uncomfortable for a complainant to give their evidence in front of the subject
member, let alone be cross-examined.

Page 28

APPENDIX A

45. Similarly, after the committee has deliberated the complainant is told of the
outcome before the subject member whereas in our view it is the subject
member who should be the first to know and is likely to be under the most
stress.
46. The Committee is therefore asked to consider whether the process
should be changed to ensure that the subject member is present
throughout the formal hearing aside from the deliberations.
47. Please note the chair is able to vary the procedures at any time so could for
example ask for the subject member to withdraw if for example it was causing
distress to a witness.
Role of the Independent Person
48. Under the Localism Act the Council must appoint at least one Independent
Person to support them in this process. S28(7) of the Act says of the IP’s role:
(a) whose views are to be sought, and taken into account, by the authority
before it makes its decision on an allegation that it has decided to
investigate, and
(b) whose views may be sought—
(c) (i) by the authority in relation to an allegation in circumstances not within
paragraph (a),
(ii) by a member, or co-opted member, of the authority if that person’s
behaviour is the subject of an allegation, and
(iii) by a member, or co-opted member, of a parish council if that person’s
behaviour is the subject of an allegation and the authority is the parish
council’s principal authority.
49. This section makes it clear that the IP is not a decision-maker but a ‘giver of
views’. This is reflected in the Arun process to a large extent. However, under
the Arun process the IP retires with the committee to help them reach a
conclusion. This is not common practice and we do not believe this is lawful
(although it has not been tested in court). There is a similar role of an
independent adviser in disciplinary cases held by the General Medical Council
and in a challenge to their proceedings the Court ruled that the independent
adviser’s views had to be made in public so that they could potentially be
challenged by the other side and that they should not therefore retire with the
Panel.

Page 29

APPENDIX A

50. We recommend the Arun procedure is amended to ensure that the IP is
not part of any private deliberations by the Panel.
Right of review
51. The final stage of the Arun process allows both the complainant and the
subject member to appeal against the decision. As stated above this is very
unusual. The general thrust in the Localism Act in moving away from more
severe sanctions was that any framework should be ‘light touch’ and
proportionate to the sanctions available. Most councils have therefore decided
not to include an appeals stage (although parties are of course entitled to
seek JR of a decision as with any public body and the complainant – if a
member of the public – can seek redress from the Ombudsman if they believe
there has been maladministration leading to an injustice).
52. If the Council decides it does want to continue to allow an appeal it needs to
clarify how such a mechanism might work. At present the procedure is very
unclear on the face of it. For example, is it the MO who decides whether to
grant an appeal and refer it on to the Panel or does it automatically get
referred on to the Panel (which should of course be of a different composition
from the original panel). If the latter, does that Panel simply decide whether to
grant ‘leave to appeal’ and then refer the case for a hearing to a third panel?
53. It also is unclear on what grounds an appeal would or would not be granted.
Any appeal mechanism would need a 2-stage process which is not spelt out
explicitly in the process:
a) Whether to grant appeal
- Who would do this and on what basis? Is it open-ended i.e., it is
automatically granted? Is it only if new evidence has become available? Or
is it only on certain criteria in the decision notice (for example the Panel
has ruled that the member was or was not acting as a councillor at the
time of the incident and the appellant wishes to challenge that assertion)?
b) If the appeal is granted is the decision considered afresh (i.e. the Panel
substituting its judgment for the original Panel) or is it merely looked at to
see whether the first decision was reasonable (even if it may have been a
fine call either way)?
54. If the Council do continue with an appeals process, we believe it should say
something like an appeal would only be allowed on one or more of the
following grounds:

(i)

the assessment/hearing was procedurally flawed, for example due
process was not followed; a relevant consideration was not taken into
account; or an irrelevant consideration was taken into account;

Page 30

APPENDIX A

(ii)

new evidence or material has arisen with a direct and significant
bearing on the case; or

(iii)

the Panel’s decision was irrational, i.e. so unreasonable that no
sensible Panel, having applied its mind to the complaint, could have
arrived at that decision.

55. We therefore ask the Panel to consider whether they wish to continue
with an appeals mechanism, whether this should be open to both the
subject member and the complainant, who would grant ‘leave to appeal’
and on what grounds.

PAUL HOEY

NATALIE AINSCOUGH

Co-Directors
Hoey Ainscough Associates Ltd
16 November 2020

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE
ON 3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT: New Social Media Guidance for Councillors
REPORT AUTHOR:
DATE:
EXTN:

Nicholas Bennett – Acting Monitoring Officer
November 2020
via 01903 737601

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This report seeks further views of the Standards Committee relating to a new Social Media
Guidance document for Councillors. It is open to Standards Committee to recommend that
Cabinet endorse the Guidance in whole, or with amendments.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Committee is asked to recommend to Cabinet that:
1) The new Social Media Guidance for Councillors be endorsed, replacing the
previous version endorsed by Cabinet on 31 May 2016; and
2) To authorise the Acting Monitoring Officer to make any consequential changes
arising from the adoption of a new Members Code of Conduct.

1.

BACKGROUND:

1.1. Standards Committee received a report on the draft Social Media Guidance for
Councillors at their meeting on 24 September 2020 (see item 8. Background Papers).
1.2. The Committee agreed the following Recommendation to Cabinet:RECOMMEND TO CABINET – That
(1) The new Social Media Guidance for Councillors be endorsed, replacing
the previous version endorsed by Cabinet on 31 May 2016; and
(2) The Acting Monitoring Officer be authorised to make any consequential
changes arising from the adoption of a new Members Code of Conduct.
1.3. At the Cabinet meeting on 19 October 2020, Cabinet broadly supported the document.
However, non-Cabinet Councillors expressed some concerns about the
recommendations within the document. Cabinet then:RESOLVED

Page 33

That the new Social Media Guidance for Councillors be referred back to the
next meeting of the Standards Committee for further discussion and debate.
1.4. The Committee are therefore requested to further debate the content of the draft
Guidance, in line with concerns expressed at the Cabinet meeting.
1.5. The Draft Social Media Guidance for Councillors as attached to this report at Appendix
1.
2. PROPOSAL(S):
The new Social Media Guidance for Councillors be endorsed, replacing the previous
version endorsed by Cabinet on 31 May 2016.
The Acting Monitoring Officer be authorised to make any consequential changes arising
from the adoption of a new Members Code of Conduct.

3. OPTIONS:
(i) To endorse the new Social Media Guidance for Councillors; or
(ii) Not to endorse the new Social Media Guidance for Councillors
4. CONSULTATION:
Has consultation been undertaken with:

YES

NO

Relevant Town/Parish Council



Relevant District Ward Councillors



Other groups/persons (please specify)
5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)
Financial

YES




Legal

NO



Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment



Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime &
Disorder Act
Sustainability



Asset Management/Property/Land



Technology



Other (please explain)



6. IMPLICATIONS:
Legal

Page 34



Section 27(1) of the Localism Act 2011 (the Act) provides that the authority must promote
and maintain high standards of conduct by Members of the authority.
Section 27(2) of the Act provides that the authority must adopt a Code of Conduct that is
expected of Members when acting in that capacity.
This guidance will support Members in maintaining high standards of conduct and create
awareness of how the Code of Conduct may apply to social media communications.

7. REASON FOR THE DECISION:
To provide updated guidance for Councillors as to how to approach social media
communications, and how the Code of Conduct may apply to those communications.
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:
1. Report to Standards Committee 24.09.20
2. Current Social Media Guidance for Councillors

SM Policy 2016
Final - Councillors.pdf

3. Minutes from Cabinet 19.10.20
4. Appendix 1 – Draft Social Media Guidance

20.12.03 Appendix
1 Social Media Guidance for Cllrs.docx

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1

Social media guidance
Contents
1.

About this document

2.

What is social media?

3.

Social media accounts

4.

Who to contact for help

5.

Examples of social media

6.

Setting up a social media account

7.

The benefits of social media

8.

Use of social media corporately

9.

Use of social media by Councillors

10. Tips for effective use
11. Pitfalls and dangers
12. Internal complaints processes
13. Code of Conduct
14. Pre-determination
15. Criminal Offences
16. Civil Law
17. Managing your social media account
18. Dealing with defamatory or abusive content
19. Dealing with online abuse and trolling
20. Security and social media
21. Training
22. Summary good practice guide

Page 37

1

APPENDIX 1

1.

About this document

This guidance document is for Councillors of Arun District Council and has been
created to provide information about the Council’s social media policy requirements
and ‘best practice’ advice in the use of social media accounts.
This document should be read alongside the authority’s Information Security
Policy and Internet and Email Acceptable Usage Agreement. There is a separate
social media policy for staff.
Social Media is a fast evolving environment and as such, this guidance is a live
document which will be updated as significant developments arise. It will be available
on the Councillor’s intranet.

2.

What is social media?

Social media may be defined as “a collective term used to describe easy ways to
create and publish on the internet.” Below we look at some of the different social
media platforms and how they might be used effectively. But in summary social
media has transformed the way that organisations do business and organisations
and individuals interact.
It has allowed the creation and wide sharing of information, ideas and interests. It
has provided a voice for those who weren’t well heard before and has changed the
way that councils and Councillors interact with local people.
This guidance looks at how social media can be used effectively as a
communications tool by Councillors as well as some of the pitfalls and dangers they
need to avoid.
The important thing to remember about social media is that it’s social - it’s about
communication and interaction. It has transformed the way that people
communicate. People are less reliant on traditional print and broadcast media for
their news but instead anyone can now publish and share their views and engage in
instant conversations with others about those views. That is why it is important
Councillors know how to use social media effectively.

3.

Social media accounts

There are four types of social media account:
-

Corporate Accounts – managed by the communications team
Departmental Accounts – professional accounts managed by an officer on
behalf of the Council
Personal Accounts – managed by Councillors for their personal use
Councillor@arun.dc accounts – managed by Councillors for their ADC
Councillor use only

Page 38

2

APPENDIX 1

As Councillors do not have responsibilities for managing Corporate or Departmental
accounts, this document applies solely to the use of ‘Personal’ social media
accounts. It does, however, briefly explain the purpose of these corporate accounts
as wider context.
It is the responsibility of individual Councillors to manage their social media
accounts.
To ensure the appropriate, safe and effective use of social media, Councillors are
advised to follow these guidelines.

4.

Who to contact for help

If you are unclear about any matter relating to social media for Arun District Council
use, please contact our Communications Team for further advice or guidance.
Contact: public.relations@arun.gov.uk
Arun District Council IT department do not support personal social media accounts,
therefore, please do not contact them as they are unable to provide advice or
guidance.

5.

Examples of social media

There are a wide range of social media platforms available, some of the most
popular being:









Twitter
Facebook
WhatsApp
YouTube
LinkedIn
Instagram
Snapchat
Nextdoor

It is important to consider which platforms are most likely to reach the target
audience you would like to engage with and the means by which you would like to
communicate with them (e.g. two-way conversation, passing on information, visuals
etc). Twitter and Facebook are the most widely used social media platforms and
therefore the most relevant to Councillors. This section of the guidance will focus on
Twitter and Facebook for Councillors, and will touch on other platforms too:
Twitter is ideal for ‘talking’ to your audience directly to give them timely information,
and to express your opinions or comments on topical issues. While your tweets and
replies remain available to view unless you delete them they are likely to only appear
on your follower’s Twitter feeds for a short time so it’s more appropriate to use

Page 39

3

APPENDIX 1

Twitter to communicate things that are happening ‘now’ or express views on current
issues.
Twitter is essentially giving out soundbites, providing links to articles which may be of
interest or commenting on or replying to the views of others. People can choose to
follow you, usually because you provide information or make comments on things
that are relevant to them rather than because they necessarily know you personally,
and unless you make your account private or you block individual accounts
essentially you have no control over who follows you or can view your tweets and
replies. A tweet is nearly always open to the world to see.
Thus it is probably the most effective tool for quick, direct communication – it’s
usually short (though the use of longer Twitter ‘threads’ is increasingly common) so
easily absorbed and open to anyone – but it is also the most open to
misinterpretation and misuse as it is difficult to do nuance in a short tweet and proper
and considered debate can be difficult. Also, its open nature and tendency for some
to use anonymous accounts can leave you susceptible to abuse and ‘trolling’.
You can also click to ‘like’ someone else’s tweet, re-tweet it (with or without adding
your own comment) or reply to it. If doing so, you should be aware that others can
view the tweets that you have ‘liked’ and indeed these tweets may appear in the
Twitter feeds of your followers with a note at the top saying that you’ve ‘liked’ the
tweet even if your followers don’t follow the account that tweeted the original tweet.
Therefore, you should be mindful about what you ‘like’ and recognise that most will
assume that by ‘liking’ a tweet that you’re endorsing its content. Similarly most will
assume that by retweeting something you agree with it or endorse it, regardless of
what you state in your profile. Therefore, you should consider adding a comment to
provide clarity.
Conversations on the same theme on Twitter are called threads. You can search for
tweets on a subject that you are interested in by typing your subject into the search
box. Tweets on the same theme are drawn together using hashtags. People use the
hashtag symbol (#) before a relevant keyword or phrase in their tweet to categorise
those tweets and help them show more easily in a Twitter search. Clicking on a hash
tagged word in any message shows you other Tweets that include that hashtag.
Facebook is ideal for posting information and related media such as pictures and
videos which can be commented on and shared by ‘friends’ or ‘followers’.
If Twitter is about broadcasting short messages, Facebook can be used to open up
lengthier discussions, share wider information and form and participate in online
communities. Users can post onto their own timeline, comment on or share other
users’ posts, set up, join and post in ‘Groups’, create, follow or like ‘Pages’ and
create and respond to ‘Events’. It allows posts as long, short, detailed or simple as
you like and people can easily comment and get a discussion going. It can be used
for political messages or just communicating with friends. Increasingly public figures

Page 40

4

APPENDIX 1

such as Councillors are using ‘Pages’ on Facebook to communicate publicly and will
have a separate personal account for communicating with family and friends. It is
worth considering how you wish to use Facebook and ensure that you have the most
appropriate type of account or accounts to suit your needs. You should also consider
the privacy settings available and ensure that you have them set to the appropriate
levels for your account(s). For standard, personal Facebook accounts you have to
request to become ‘friends’ with others and can accept or decline ‘friend’ requests.
Once a friendship is formed on Facebook your posts will appear in each other’s
feeds/on each other’s timelines unless you amend your settings. If you are a
member of a ‘Group’ and post or comment within it other members of the ‘Group’ will
be able to see what you’ve said, even if you’re not ‘friends’ with them. For example,
many towns, villages, neighbourhoods and local communities have their own
Facebook ‘Groups’ where local issues, concerns and events are posted and
discussed. Often Councillors will be members of these ‘Groups’ which enables you
to keep abreast of issues and concerns, share information and publicise events with
members of your local community beyond your personal ‘friends’.
As Facebook ‘Groups’ and ‘Pages’ are generally open forums you should be
prepared to receive challenge and criticism. Not everyone will agree with your ideas
or views, though you can set rules, moderate and edit other people’s posts if their
language or content is offensive or inappropriate.
WhatsApp is primarily a closed messaging service. As well as allowing the
exchange of messages and media between individual users, ‘Groups’ can be
created and ‘chats’ can take place between members of the ‘Group’. Many political
groups use it for the exchange of private messages between members. While
messages exchanged on WhatsApp are not broadcast publicly it is worth
remembering that others have the ability to take screenshots of messages that you
send and share with others.
YouTube is an online video-sharing platform. YouTube allows users to upload, view,
rate, share and comment on videos, and subscribe to other users’ ‘channels’. Videos
are easy to record via a smartphone and YouTube is increasingly being used by
councils to post information.
LinkedIn is a way to connect with like-minded individuals or people with similar
career paths. It allows you in effect to enter your CV, providing information about
your career history and skills and you can accept or decline people who want to see
your profile. Those people with whom you are “linked” can endorse you for particular
skills. It is a handy site for finding expertise and keeping up-to-date with business
developments in your ward or area.
Instagram is a photo and video sharing service which allows users to upload media
and organise it with ‘tags’ and location information. Users can view photos and
videos posted by accounts that they ‘follow’, or they can ‘follow’ particular ‘tags’ or
search for images that have been ‘tagged’ with a particular word, phrase or location.
Don’t forget to seek permission before taking photos to upload to, or copying images
from Instagram.

Page 41

5

APPENDIX 1

Snapchat is a messaging app for photo, video, drawing and text. One of the app’s
principal features is that pictures and messages are usually only available for a short
time before they become inaccessible to their recipients. Other features include the
ability for users to post ‘Stories’ of 24 hours of chronological content and allows them
to keep their photos in a password-protected space.
Nextdoor is a social networking service for neighbourhoods. It is typically used to
report local news and events and members often ask each other for local serviceprovider recommendations.

6.

Setting up a social media account

Managing a social media account can be very time consuming as it needs to be
regularly updated if it is to be an effective communications tool. Before setting up an
account, you should ask yourself the following questions:
Why do you think you need a social media account?
How will you manage the account? How much time will you be able to dedicate to it?
What information will you be communicating through the account?
Is it purely for my role as a Councillor, purely for private matters or will it be for both
purposes?
IT IS BETTER NOT TO HAVE A SOCIAL MEDIA ACCOUNT THAN TO HAVE ONE
THAT CANNOT BE PROPERLY MANAGED.
Use of email addresses in setting up a personal social media account
Councillors must not use their @arun.gov.uk email address to set up personal social
media accounts, for security reasons. Only personal email addresses can be used
for this purpose and if a Council email address has been used, the account may be
closed requiring that a new one be set up.
It is important to note that the closing of a social media account due to the misuse of
an email address in this way may result in significant loss to that account e.g. loss of
followers. Arun District Council cannot take responsibility for any such loss.
Choosing your username
When choosing your username for a social media account, as this name will appear
in the public domain, it is important that is not misleading to your audience. A
personal social media account should not give followers the impression that the
account represents an organisation.

Page 42

6

APPENDIX 1

In particular, if you are setting up an account to support your role as a Councillor,
you should choose an account name that clearly distinguishes it from that of Arun
District Council’s social media accounts.
To this end, it is strongly suggested that you choose words that clearly show that the
account is a personal one (e.g. for a Twitter account, you might choose @your name
or @Councillorname but not @aruncouncil or @arunplanning).
Note that a maximum of 15 characters are allowed for Twitter usernames.
Using a disclaimer
When setting up a social media account that you intend to use in relation to your role
as Councillor, it is strongly advised that you must include the below disclaimer on the
account so it is clearly accessible to your followers:
‘The views posted represent my own and are not attributed to any other person or
organisation.’
Use of email addresses in setting up a Councillor@arundc social media account
Councillors must not use an Arun email address to set up personal social media
accounts. For security reasons, Councillor email addresses can only be used for
Council business, with the social media account clearly identifying that they are an
elected Councillor for Arun District Council.
The Council will control the password so that the site can be removed should the
Councillor leave the Council or the site needs to be closed for another reason.
Choosing your user name
When you are setting up an account to support your role as a Councillor, you can
only choose an account name that clearly identifies you as a part of Arun District
Council’s social media accounts e.g. CllrMrxy@arun.gov.uk
A standard Council template will be used for these Councillor social media sites so
that the link between the Councillor and the Council itself is clearly identified.

7.

The Benefits of using social media

Social media is a communication tool which allows you to connect with a much wider
range of people more regularly than traditional communications methods. It is free
for all to use, messages are received instantly to allow real-time feedback and are
accessible to anyone who is online. Used effectively that is why it can be a very
powerful tool for Councillors.

8.

Why does the Council use it for corporate communication?

Page 43

7

APPENDIX 1

As mentioned above the Council has a number of corporate social media accounts.
It is about being a modern communicator. Previously if the public wanted information
about service they would phone up the Council or go to the Council website and
receive that information passively without being able to enter into discussions with
third parties about the information or know how accurate or up-to-date any
information might be.
Now people want to be told things instantly and rather than looking for answers
themselves may simply ask questions on social media and see who responds. If the
Council is not communicating it does not control the information that people receive
and people may get contradictory answers or no reply at all but many people now
feel it’s easier to ask a question on Twitter or Facebook than click through various
pages on a website to find the information they need. So if the Council is not
communicating with its residents other people will be but it may not be the accurate
message the Council needs to get out and instead someone with less information or
a different agenda may be communicating with residents instead.
Not engaging on social media therefore now represents a far greater risk to councils
than engaging. Local people will still use these networks to talk about the council
whether they add their voice to the conversation or not and local people will expect
their council to engage with them on their terms, via their channels, and to be openly
available online. It is becoming increasingly clear that if councils don’t use these
tools, then local people will do it for them, and bypass the council entirely.
9.

Why do Councillors use it?

Individual Councillors increasingly use social media as their chosen communication
tool for similar reasons. It helps you find out local peoples’ concerns and opinions on
a range of matters. It enables you to connect with a different type of resident whom
you may not have been able to reach before.
It boosts the number of people you can potentially reach with key messages,
including the local, or even national press who will be monitoring Councillors’ social
media postings. In effect each tweet, post or comment is a mini-press release which
reaches its audience immediately.
Rather than traditional forms of communicating such as the occasional newsletter
through the door which was in effect one-way communication, social media
establishes two-way communication so you can get instant feedback on issues, and
allows you to modify your proposals in line with local thinking. It also enables you to
learn about breaking news in your area and what is concerning your residents and
receive real-time updates about what is happening.
Social media can also raise your profile and wider awareness of the work you do in
your ward which has often not been widely known.

Page 44

8

APPENDIX 1

It allows you to share your own opinions on important issues and show your
personality, allowing you to appear more human and relatable. People often don’t
fully know or understand the role of Councillors and may have negative perceptions.
Social media allows you to show others what you do, your interests and what
motivates you. This can help foster a better understanding of local government and
counter some of the negativity that exists.
You can take part in conversations which are already happening in your
neighbourhood. If you are not part of those conversations you can’t be influencing
and shaping your community and hearing what the real concerns are. People
increasingly expect their Councillors to be contactable via social media and if you’re
not they may bypass you altogether.
Please also remember that the rules around what can and can’t be said in preelection periods would apply equally to social media.
10. Tips for effective use of Social Media
There are FOUR principles which should be applied to all social media activity. It
should be:
Polite
Respectful of others’ viewpoints
Open
Professional
Always ensure that content in your social media postings is:
– accurate
– up-to-date
– objective
– balanced
– interesting
– informative
Social media is about the ‘now’ so keep it up to date and fresh. Only post if you
have something of interest and value to say – if you post too often and are too selfcentred you risk turning people off and the message being lost when you do have
something important or interesting to communicate.
You might find it helpful to set a specific time each day or each week to write new
content or respond to questions and comments. Set notifications so that you’ll
alerted when someone else mentions you, responses to something you’ve said or
comments on a topic you’re interested in.
Decide how you are going to use social media, this could be responding to others
when they raise questions or issues, regular updates on what you’ve been doing as
a Councillor, regular updates on council policies and actions, signposting local

Page 45

9

APPENDIX 1

events, seeking opinions on local issues or sharing wider points of interest such as
national or international news and views.
Be mindful of your tone. Be polite and professional. Professional doesn’t mean be
pompous or use jargon – social media is an informal way of communicating – but it is
about projecting an image to the world of how you want to be seen.
Be open. People should always be able to identify who is posting. While you may
want to use a nickname as a handle you are a public figure so don’t pretend to be
somebody you’re not or hide behind anonymity even when you are posting about
private matters as you will be under scrutiny and attract suspicion if you are not
open.
Be visible. Make it easy for people to find you online by sharing and publicising your
social media account details. When posting make sure you mention your location so
this will be found by search engines and use hashtags.
Increase your followers by following other accounts. Also make sure you regularly
retweet, share, comment and like posts from others.
Above all it’s about communication and interaction so be interactive but be
respectful. Disagree with people but don’t get personal. Politics can inevitably be
passionate but it damages your image and that of your fellow Councillors in the eyes
of the public if you are seen to be rude, abusive or unwilling to listen respectfully.
If you are using social media for anything other than council activities check your
privacy settings and think about having separate accounts, especially for things like
Facebook. It is good practice to try and separate your personal postings from those
you are posting in your role as a Councillor.
And be clear when you are posting about council matters that you are expressing
personal or party views rather than speaking on behalf of the Council. You should
make this clear on your profile. If you have an official role within the Council, for
example as leader or a portfolio holder you should always check with the
Communications Team and use official council channels wherever possible before
commenting on behalf of the Council.
If you do have privacy settings on personal accounts make sure they are up-to-date
and accurate and do not accept ‘friend requests’ from people you do not know.

11. Pitfalls and dangers of social media
Being on social media means that people can contact you at any time, day or night,
which can be a strength if it’s an urgent matter, but it may also lead to the
expectation that you will be able to respond to all issues immediately. This
expectation is not necessarily realistic and can lead to you feeling very pressurised.
It may therefore by helpful to tell people when your account will be checked in your
profile.

Page 46

10

APPENDIX 1

Social media can be ‘no holds barred’. You will be aware that the tone of debate on
social media can at times be very unpleasant. People can very quickly get very
angry about things on social media and people, who may not even know each other,
can either egg people on to be abusive or else get into ferocious rows. You should
always avoid getting drawn into unpleasant debates or ‘rising to the bait’
While one of the strengths of social media is its inclusivity – some are generally
open to anyone in the community and you can find people with similar interest or
viewpoints you may not have known - it also risks being exclusive, particularly when
it comes to political debate, creating what is known as an ‘echo chamber’. People
generally choose to follow people or media that share their outlook on life and there
is a danger that you constantly get a one-sided view. As a politician there can be a
danger you only follow people who reinforce your own world view. It is important also
to follow people who can put forward alternative views to you so that you can get a
more rounded view of issues and see things form different perspectives.
Social media can also be addictive. Many people use social media constantly even if
they have nothing important to say. Communicate only when you have something
important to get across as otherwise the value can be lost and people will stop
listening if they feel bombarded.
Remember also to consider everything you post as being a permanent record. Even
if you decide to delete something, somebody else might have saved it so always
think before you post – are you saying something you are happy to have on the
record?
If you had a social media account before you were elected as a Councillor you may
wish to review your historical posts. You may have posted personal content or views
that you no longer agree with. If you think that historical posts might cause
embarrassment or reputational damage to you or the Council you may wish to delete
them. It is important to note that although you posted your comments before you
were a Councillor, they are still being broadcast so they can be linked to you and
shared by others.
12. Complaints
As well as the pitfalls of reputational damage through misuse of social media, there
are also more formal issues to consider. Complaints may be made either to the
Council or to your political group about a posting or comment you may have made.
So you will need to be aware of how complaints will be handled by the Council (see
the Local Assessment Procedure on complaints handling or contact the Monitoring
Officer for further details),
The following sections look at some specific areas you need to be aware of.

Page 47

11

APPENDIX 1

13. The Code of Conduct
When you post on social media the Arun District Council Code of Conduct may apply
to your postings.
Please bear in mind that under the Localism Act 2011 the Code only applies to you
when you are in your role as a Councillor. So things you post which are purely
private matters unrelated to your role as a Councillor or council business will not be
caught by the Code.
However, clearly if your social media account identifies you as Cllr X, for Arun
District Council, then potentially you would bring yourself within the scope of the
Code, even if your communication did not relate to Council business. Conversely of
course simply saying Mr or Ms X at the top may not get around the Code if you then
start talking about council business.
As a broad rule of thumb if you can be identified as a Councillor when you are using
social media, either by account name or how you describe yourself or by what you
comment upon and how you comment, the requirements of the Code are likely to
apply. In any case even private comments which are considered disrespectful or
abusive will cause reputational damage. People are still likely to view you as a public
figure and council representative and you may also be subject to party discipline.

14. Pre-determination
As a Councillor, you are aware that when you act in a quasi-judicial capacity, for
example on a Planning Committee or Licensing Committee, you should not make up
your mind about an issue that is to be formally decided upon, before you have heard
all the relevant information.
You are allowed to be predisposed to a particular view but not to have gone so far as
to have predetermined your position. It is important to remember therefore that
anything relevant you might have said about particular issues on social media could
be used as evidence of your having made up your mind in advance of hearing all of
the relevant information. This could prevent you voting on the issue at a later date.

15. Criminal Offences
These generally apply to you already in your conduct as a Councillor, but it is worth
considering them as they apply to social media too.
Harassment – it is a criminal offence to repeatedly pursue a campaign against
someone where this is likely to cause alarm, harassment, nuisance or distress
Data Protection and the General Data Protection Regulation – it is illegal to
publish personal data about individuals unless they have given you their permission.

Page 48

12

APPENDIX 1

As a Councillor you are a data controller in your own right and therefore personally
responsible for what you publish. Make sure you understand the requirements of the
GDPR and the Data Protection Act.
Incitement – it is a criminal offence to incite any criminal act
Discrimination and Racially Aggravated Offences (or any other protected
characteristic) – it is a criminal offence to make a discriminatory remark about
anyone based on a ‘Protected Characteristic’ as defined in the Equality Act (such as
their race, religion, sexual orientation etc).
Malicious & Obscene Communications – it is a criminal offence to send malicious
or obscene communications

16. Civil Law
Defamation – It is against the law to make a false statement about someone which
damages their personal or professional reputation. If you pass on information
originally posted by others (e.g. retweet), you may still be held equally responsible as
the original commentator. This can also apply to publishing images. If you are found
liable to another person, you could be ordered to pay large sums of money as
damages. A High Court example is Lord McAlpine-v-Sally Bercow (2013).
Copyright - The legal ownership of the contents of documents, photos, videos and
music belong to the person who created them. You could be in breach of copyright if
you reproduce such material without the owner’s permission. Always ask permission
before you use someone else’s material. The cost of legal action may be very
expensive.

17. Managing your social media account
We would advise that you maintain separate social media accounts if you intend to
manage an account which relates to your work as a Councillor and that you do not
post personal or family related information on such sites. By keeping your accounts
separate in this way, you are able to adjust the security settings for each to suit your
appropriate audiences (for example, your ‘Councillor’ account may be open to all,
whereas your ‘personal’ account may be restricted to family and friends).

18. Dealing with defamatory or abusive content
If you receive defamatory comments on your social media account, most social
media sites have an option to report these. Depending on the seriousness of the
matter, you may wish to take it up with the police.
Councillors who wish to report defamatory comments made by an ADC employee or
Councillor should also contact the Communications team in the first instance. This
will then be reported internally through the appropriate channels.

Page 49

13

APPENDIX 1

Above all do not get drawn into defamatory or protracted debates.

19. Dealing with online abuse and trolling
Disagreement and challenge is a key feature of democratic debate and can be
healthy and helpful. However, it can become abusive and this is particularly the case
online. While it isn’t possible to prevent online abuse, you are able to control how
you react and respond to it. Here are some tips:
Be clear about what you expect from others when interacting with them on social
media, for example you could state in your profile or blog that you will not tolerate
abuse or harassment and that you will delete and report and inappropriate
comments.
Don’t put up with abuse or harassment. Don’t be afraid to ‘block’, ‘mute’ or ‘report’
abusive comments or users. However, do not block people simply because they
disagree with you provided they are doing so respectfully.
Consider whether it might be better to ignore abusive comments and users. ‘Trolls’
commonly have very few followers and may not even be located within your
community. By responding you may fuel an argument and give the ‘troll’ the oxygen
of publicity. While it may be difficult not to challenge unpleasant or inaccurate
comments and could lead to suggestions that you are ignoring an issue, it may be
more sensible and successful in the long run.
Above all, while it may be difficult and feel unfair it is important to remain calm and
polite. Sometimes people can become frustrated, particularly if they are trying to
resolve an issue with a council service, and this can result in angry and critical
comments. If you respond politely and helpfully this may diffuse the situation and the
user’s tone may change and become less angry and more constructive. When
dealing with challenging comments and users it may be helpful, when responding, to
stick to facts and not offer views or opinions.

20. Security and social media
Security is a significant issue for social media accounts and the online community
often use social media to deliver viruses. It is very important that you follow the
below guidelines:
-

do not use the same passwords for social media that you use to access
corporate systems
do not follow links on social media pages that are posted by individuals or
organisations that you do not know
do not download software posted or recommended by individuals or
organisations that you do not know
if you find content that looks suspicious in any way, close your browser and do
not return to that page

Page 50

14

APPENDIX 1

-

do not share your usernames or passwords with anyone
do not disclose your username or password to anyone

What to do if you get hacked
If your account is hacked, log into the social networking site and change the
password as soon as possible. Delete all the offensive or spam messages sent from
the account (you may wish to print a record of these if you are considering taking the
matter further). Report the incident to the respective social media organisation (e.g.
Twitter, Facebook). Depending on the seriousness of the offence, you may consider
reporting it to the police.

21. Training
The Communications team provide one-to-one or group training courses in social
media skills, depending on your needs.
If you are interested in receiving training in social media, please contact the team at
public.relations@arun.gov.uk or call Claire Pritchard on 01903 737613 or Amanda
Harding 01903 767604 to discuss your needs further.

22. Summary of good practice
-

Think about the content
Be aware of your status – are you speaking as a politician or an individual?
Express your personality but be aware how comments and views might be
perceived or (deliberately) misinterpreted
Tolerate different views but steer away from abusive and offensive posts
Beware the irony
Let things go - avoid arguments with provocative or vexatious people

The do’s and don’ts for using social media
Follow the below suggestions for ‘what to do’ and ‘what not to do’ when using social
media to effectively engage with your followers and to avoid potential problems.

Page 51

15

APPENDIX 1

DO:
Remember that as a Councillor you are an ambassador for Arun District
Council
-

write as you would speak (I / We)
use appropriate language
use a positive and engaging tone
ensure your post is informative
check information is true or correct before you share
use common sense
ensure your post is timely
make use of available pictures (see our *‘Filming and Photographic Policy’)
ask permission before taking a picture you intend to use
include useful and relevant links
check any links within your post are working
correct any errors as soon as you are aware an error has been made
acknowledge and respond to direct messages within a reasonable specified
timeframe
use security settings to block unwanted language
keep passwords safe and secure
(*Please note that the Filming and Photographic Policy is currently under
review)

DO NOT:
-

use technical jargon
post a picture of any person without obtaining their consent
refer to other Councillors or officers without their prior approval
publish contact details of Councillors or officers without their approval
post when you are “tired or emotional”
make discriminatory or offensive comments about people
criticise Councillors or officers
disclose confidential information
discuss sensitive matters
engage in arguments
use abusive language
make comments that could be inflammatory
publish anything that might be interpreted as sexist, ageist, homophobic or antifaith
try to secure a benefit for yourself or disadvantage others
allow anyone else to access to your social media accounts

Remember the press may follow your social media accounts and anything you write
cannot be deleted or removed from cyberspace.
If you are in any doubt about a post or comment you have received, made, or
responded to, please contact the Communications team

Page 52

16

Agenda Item 9
ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE
ON 3 DECEMBER 2020
SUBJECT:

Register of Assessments of Complaints against Councillors

REPORT AUTHOR:
DATE:
EXTN:

Nicholas Bennett – Acting Monitoring Officer
November 2020
via 01903 737601

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This report updates the Committee on the complaints against Councillors received since the last
report. The Committee is responsible for maintaining high standards of conduct by Members of
the District and Town & Parish Councils, for monitoring operation of the Code of Conduct, and for
considering the outcome of investigations in the event of breaches of the Code.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Committee is asked to resolve that:
(1) the Register of Complaints against Councillors and progress of any outstanding complaints
be noted.

1.0
1.1

BACKGROUND AND COMPLAINT ACTIVITY
A Register of Assessments of Complaints against Councillors is updated regularly by the
(Acting) Monitoring Officer and distributed to Members of the Standards Committee. This
assists Members in making decisions on where to direct training and to review any lessons
learned. The register is also a reference source for Members of other similar complaints,
when dealing with assessments.

1.2 Since the last report (considered by Standards Committee at the meeting on 24 September
2020), the following complaints have been received, progressed or completed.

Case Ref
19/14,
19/16

Council
19/15, Felpham
Council

Allegation/Complaint Outcome
Parish Breach of Code Paras Three
complaints
1,2,5,6,7,10,11
considered
by
Assessment Panel.
Showing disrespect to A review of the
members of the public; Panel’s
decision
inferring that a Council has
been
Policy
had
been requested.
adopted whilst still in
draft form.

Page 53

20/04

20/06

20/07

20/08

20/09

Arun District Council Breach of Code
Paras 8, 9, and 10.

– Stage
investigation
progress

1
in

Conduct at meetings
Arun District Council Breach of Code, Paras Informal resolution
1 & 8.
agreed
Conduct at meetings
Arun District Council Breach of Code – Para
&
Littlehampton 10
Town Council
Disrespect shown on
social media
Arun District Council Breach of Code – Para
10

Informal resolution
rejected. Complaint
closed.

Informal resolution
agreed.

Treating people with
respect
Arun District Council Breach of Code – Para Informal resolution
10
agreed. Complaint
closed.
Disrespect shown on
social media

2.0

REASON FOR THE INFORMATION

2.1

To comply with the adopted Code of Conduct and Local Assessment Procedure.

3.0

OPTIONS

1. None as all the complaints have been considered in line with the adopted Local Assessment
Procedure.
4.0

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Members Code of Conduct
Local Assessment Procedure

https://www.arun.gov.uk/complaints-against-councillors
https://www.arun.gov.uk/complaints-against-councillors

Page 54

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

